Cllrs. McGeever, Shilton, Walder

6.

Exclusion of the Public



REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE

Notice of a Meeting, to be held in the Committee Room 2 (Bad Münstereifel Room) - Ashford Borough Council on **Tuesday**, **9th January**, **2024 at 9.30 am**.

Ashlord Borough Council on Tuesday, 9th January, 2024 at 9.30 am.	
The Members of the Regulatory Sub-Committee are:-	

Cllr. Michael (Substitute Member) Agenda Page Nos. 1. **Election of Chair** 2. **Apologies/Substitutes** To receive Notification of Substitutes in accordance with Procedure Rule 1.2(c) 3. **Declarations of Interest** 3 - 4To declare any interests which fall under the following categories, as explained on the attached document: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) a) Other Significant Interests (OSI) b) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests See Agenda Item 3 for further details. 4. **Minutes** 5 - 6 To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of the Regulatory Sub-Committee held on 11th October 2023. 5. **Procedure Note for Regulatory Hearings** 7 - 10



That pursuant to Section100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following item, as it is likely in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the public were present there would be disclosure of exempt information hereinafter specified by reference to paragraphs 1 & 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

7.	Review of Hackney	√ Carriage	Drivers	Licence
	TOTION OF FINORITIES	, carrage	D 111010	

11 - 40

20 December 2023		
Queries concerning this agenda?	Please contact Member Services	Tel: 01233 330499

Email: membersservices@ashford.gov.uk
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: www.ashford.moderngov.co.uk

Agenda Item 3

Declarations of Interest (see also "Advice to Members" below)

(a) <u>Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI)</u> under the Localism Act 2011, relating to items on this agenda. The <u>nature</u> as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated.

A Member who declares a DPI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting for that item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted).

(b) Other Significant Interests (OSI) under the Kent Code of Conduct relating to items on this agenda. The <u>nature</u> as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated.

A Member who declares an OSI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting <u>before</u> the <u>debate and vote</u> on that item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted). However, prior to leaving, the Member may address the Committee in the same way that a member of the public may do so.

- (c) <u>Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests</u> not required to be disclosed under (a) and (b), i.e. announcements made for transparency alone, such as:
 - Membership of amenity societies, Town/Community/Parish Councils, residents' groups or other outside bodies that have expressed views or made representations, but the Member was not involved in compiling or making those views/representations, or
 - Where a Member knows a person involved, but does <u>not</u> have a close association with that person, or
 - Where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but <u>not</u> his/her financial position.

[Note: Where an item would be likely to affect the <u>financial position</u> of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc.; OR where an item is <u>an application made</u> by a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc., there is likely to be an OSI or in some cases a DPI. ALSO, holding a committee position/office within an amenity society or other outside body, or having any involvement in compiling/making views/representations by such a body, may give rise to a perception of bias and require the Member to take no part in any motion or vote.]

Advice to Members on Declarations of Interest:

- (a) Government Guidance on DPI is available in DCLG's Guide for Councillors, at https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf
- (b) The Kent Code of Conduct was adopted by the Full Council on 19 July 2012, and a copy can be found in the Constitution alongside the Council's Good Practice Protocol for Councillors dealing with Planning Matters. See https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf
- (c) Where a Member declares a committee position or office within, or membership of, an outside body that has expressed views or made representations, this will be taken as a statement that the Member was not involved in compiling or making them and has retained an open mind on the item(s) in question. If this is not the case, the situation must be explained.

If any Member has any doubt about any interest which he/she may have in any item on this agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Director of Law and Governance and Monitoring Officer, or from other Solicitors in Legal and Democracy as early as possible, <u>and in advance</u> of the Meeting.

Page 3



Regulatory Sub-Committee

Minutes of a Meeting of the Regulatory Sub-Committee held in Committee Room No.2, Civic Centre, Tannery Lane, Ashford on the **11**th **October 2023.**

Present:

Cllr. McGeever (Chair);

Cllrs. Hallett, Wright.

Also Present:

Environmental Protection & Licensing Team Leader, Licensing Officer, Principal Litigator,

Applicant.

Also Present (Virtually):

Senior Member Services Officer

168 Election of Chair

Resolved:

That Councillor McGeever be elected as Chair for this Meeting of the Regulatory Sub-Committee.

169 Minutes

Resolved:

That the Minutes of the Meeting of this Sub-Committee held on 20th September 2023 be approved and confirmed as a correct record.

170 Exclusion of the Public

Resolved:

That pursuant to Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following item, as it is likely in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the public were present there would be disclosure of exempt information hereinafter specified by reference to paragraphs 1 and 2 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

171 Application for a Private Hire Drivers Licence.

The Councillors and Officers present were introduced. The Chair welcomed all present and explained the procedure to be followed. The Sub-Committee Members confirmed that they had received and read the agenda papers.

The Licensing Officer had submitted a report which outlined the case. He went through the background to the application and the history of the Applicant. He outlined the options available to the Sub-Committee.

The Applicant then put his case to the Committee.

The Sub-Committee then asked questions of the Applicant.

The Sub-Committee then retired to make its decision.

On the Sub-Committee's return, the Chair read out the 'Decision and Reasonings Statement' that had been prepared by the Regulatory Sub-Committee. A copy of this was given to the Applicant and would also be sent to all present, along with the Minutes and decision letter.

Resolved:

That the Private Hire Drivers Licence application be refused.

PROCEDURE NOTE FOR LICENSING/REGULATORY HEARINGS

- 1. Prior to the meeting of the Committee¹, the Committee will have read and familiarised themselves with the Licensing Officer's report and documents referred to in it.
- 2. The hearing will take place in public, subject to a discretion to exclude the public and/or parties where the public interest in doing so outweighs the public interest in the hearing taking place in public². The Committee may also exclude anyone behaving disruptively.3
- 3. The parties⁴ are entitled to be assisted or represented by any person, whether or not legally qualified. A party is entitled to withdraw any of their representations orally at the hearing or at least 24 hours before the day or the first day of the hearing.5
- 4. The Committee may extend any time limit in the Regulations for a specified period where it considers this to be necessary in the public interest, but must state the period of the extension and the reason for it.6 For example, the Committee may extend the time for making a request to call a witness (see paragraph 16- below).
- 5. Where a party has notified the authority that he does not intend to attend, the Committee will proceed with the hearing in his absence. Where he has not so notified the authority but does not attend, the Committee may adjourn the hearing to a specified date where it considers it necessary in the public interest to do so. Otherwise, it will proceed with the hearing.⁷
- 6. Before proceeding in the absence of a party who has not indicated that they do not wish to attend, the Licensing Officer will attempt to ascertain the reason for that party's non-attendance.
- 7. The Committee may adjourn the hearing to a specified, or extra, date where it considers this to be necessary for the determination of the case.8 There are limitations on the ability of the Committee to adjourn the case beyond the time limits for determination during the transitional period and on reviews following closure orders by the police.9
- 8. At the outset of the meeting, a Chair will be elected and any personal and/or prejudicial interests declared.¹⁰
- 9. Except where the Regulations make specific requirements, the procedure will be in the discretion of the Committee.¹¹

objectors and responsible authorities, such as the Police.

⁵ Reg 10

¹ In this Note the expression "the Committee" includes a sub Committee.

² Reg 14 Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005

³ Reg 25. ⁴ Reg 2(1) "a person to whom notice of the hearing is to be given under Reg 6(1)" – includes

⁶ Reg 11. ⁷ Reg 20.

⁸ Reg 12.

⁹ Reg 13.

¹⁰ Model Code of Conduct

- 10. At the beginning of the hearing, the Committee will explain to the parties the procedure it proposes to follow.¹²
- 11. The Chairman will indicate that all the papers before the Committee have been read and that the Committee is familiar with the issues. He will ask the parties to avoid repetition.
- 12. The Chairman will indicate the order of presentation.
- 13. If there are a number of objectors present, the Chairman may request that a spokesperson be appointed. He will make it clear that any party¹³ who wishes to speak will be able to do so, and that the appointment of a spokesperson does not mean that the objections of any interested party will be given less weight.
- 14. The Chairman may also indicate how the Committee intends to deal with conditions proposed by the parties or by the Committee itself. He may ask the parties to attempt to agree a schedule of conditions for use if the Committee is minded to grant the application. This will not mean that the Committee has formed any view of the merits. It will only come to its decision at the end.
- 15. A party is entitled to be represented or assisted by another person, whether or not that person is legally qualified. 14
- 16. If a party wishes a person (other than himself or his representative) to appear at the hearing he must have made a request to do so prior to the hearing within the times prescribed in Reg. 8. The request must name the person and give a brief description of the point(s) on which that person may be able to assist. In such a case, the Committee will determine the application for permission at the outset of the hearing. In determining that request, the authority will consider the representations of all parties upon the matter and may consider the relevance of the proposed evidence, the assistance it will in fact offer to the Committee and the prejudice to the parties, if the evidence is admitted or excluded.
- 17. Each of the parties has a right to:
 - a. address the Committee:
 - b. give clarification of any point, where such clarification has been sought by the Council in its notice of hearing;
 - c. question any other party, but only where this is expressly permitted by the Committee (see para 21 below).¹⁷
- 18. The Committee must allow an equal maximum time for the parties to exercise their rights as set out in para 17 above.¹⁸

¹² Reg 22

¹¹ Reg 21.

¹³ see footnote 4

¹⁴ Rea 15.

¹⁵ Reg 22

¹⁶ Reg 22

¹⁷ Reg 16.

- 19. The Committee will set the time of the hearing at the outset, having regard to its view of the length reasonably required for the hearing. It may hear the parties briefly before setting the maximum time. It may extend the time where circumstances require.¹⁹
- 20. The hearing is to take the form of a discussion led by the Committee.²⁰ The Chairman will ensure that within the discussions, all parties are given an opportunity to state their case as set out in their written application/representations and to meet the case of opposing parties.
- 21. Cross-examination will not be permitted unless the Committee considers that it is required for it to give proper consideration to the case.²¹ Any application to cross-examine will be heard and dealt with at the hearing.
- 22. The Committee may consider cross-examination to be required, for example, where there is a genuine issue of fact, which can only be resolved fairly through cross-examination.
- 23. The Committee may question any party or other person(s) appearing.²²
- 24. The Committee may take into account documentary or other information provided by a party before the hearing. Information produced at the hearing may only be taken into account with the consent of all other parties.²³ The parties are therefore strongly recommended to exchange documentary evidence and brief summaries of any proposed witness evidence at least 5 days before the hearing, otherwise they may be restricted in the information they can put before the committee. Any material exchanged should also be given to the licensing authority at the same time.
- 25. The Committee must disregard any information given which is not relevant to the application, representations or notice of the party giving the information. The Committee must also disregard any information which is not relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives.²⁴
- 26. In certain circumstances, the Committee is required by law to make its determination at the conclusion of the hearing. This includes certain applications made during the transitional period, counter-notices following police objections to temporary events notices, and reviews of premises licences following closure orders. Otherwise the Committee is required to determine the application within five working days of the day or the last day on which the hearing was held²⁵.
- 27. The Committee will give reasons for its decision and will confirm the decision in writing to the parties.

¹⁹ Reg 11

¹⁸ Reg 24.

²⁰ Reg 23.

²¹ Reg 23.

²² Reg 17.

²³ Reg 18.

²⁴ Reg 19.

²⁵ Reg 26.



Agenda Item 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

